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This judgermnent relates to the claim of the Plaintifi against the Defendant for
declaratory reliefs and special and general damages for the injury sustained
by the official of the Plaintiff, allegedly (JLIt-' to the dangerous driving of the
Defendant which resulied in an accident nwolvmg the Plaintiff’s staff in the
course of his official duty. The Defendant denied liability and instead counter
claimed declaratory reliefs and general and exemplary darmages amou‘nting

to N2m for the unlawful damage o the Defendant’s Toyota Carmry car by

or‘ricials of the Plaintiff, shock, pain and financial loss to the Defendant's
family as well as the refusal to release the said car to the Defendant on the

24/03/2013 after the Defendant paid the R:harges_ for the “phantom”

offences, etc.

The Plaintiff instituted this Suit by writ of surmmons which was issued by F.
0. Ogudugu, Esq., uf Counsel for the Plainiiff on the 10/06/2013. The writ

was filed along with a staremnent of claim and statements on cath of
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Plaintiff's two witnesses, the list of two withesses and list of dacuments to be
relied on by the Plaintiff at the hearing as well as copics of the documents

listed.

The Defendant upon being served with the Plaintiff's processes filed a
Conditional Memorandum of Appearance, a Statement of Defence, and
Statement on Oath of the Defence witness and list of witness and documents

to be relied on by the Defendant at the trial.

By the leave of Court, the Plaintiff filed an Amended Statement of Claim on
the 04/06/2014 with written statements on oath of fwa witnesses, Barclays
Toloni Faolbo, Deputy Poute Commander and Marshal Oluwasehur Adeshola,

Poad Marshal Assistant 111, both officials of the Plaintiff,

In paragraph 46 of the Amended Statement of Claim, the Flaintiff gave the
particulars of special damages as follows:

)

40; Pariceiars of the Special Bamaaes

First Hospital Treatment - MN3,970.00
Hospital Treatment - MN50,000.00
Traditional Treatment - N-HE 000,00
General Provisions for the period - MG, 000,00

Purchase of other Drugs - MN12,000.00

Total - MIE260,000.00
Furthermaore, the Plaintiff in paragraph 47 of the Statement of Claim, claims
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Whereaof the Plaintiff claims as follows against the Defendant as follows
(sic): ,

A declaration that the Defendant’s dangeraus driving in a Toyaia camry
(pencil light) with Pegistration Na. EQ 134 AR) caused the accident

which led to the injury sustained by Qluwasehun 5. Adeshola (Foad

Maishal Assistant T1) an official of the Plaintiff.

A declaration that the dangerous driving by the Defendant in a Toyota
Camry (pencil light) with Pegistration No. EQ 134 ARJ which led to the
accident involving Oluwasehun =, Adeshola (Foad Marshal Assistant IT)
in the cause (sic) of his official duties caused the Flaintiif to incur
financial expenses for the medication of Oluwasshun S. Adeshola (Road

Marshal Assistant 1) a siaff of the Plaintiff.

An Oider of special damages compelling the Defendant to pay the sum

l

of 4120,000.00 (One Hundred and Twenty Naira) only as medical bill to
the Plaintiff so incurred for the treatment of her siaf f, Oluwasehun 5
Adeshala (Road Marshal Azsistant I1).

An order compelling the Defendant to p; ay the sum of N200.00 (Two
Hundred Naira) anly per day from the 3 Marc h, 2015 &l the filing of
this action on the 10™ of June, 2013, which is 1_UU days amounting to
M20,000.00 (Twenty Thousand Naira) only as custody fee on his
impounded car with Registration No. EQ 134 ABJ.

An Ordar compelling the Defendant to pay the sum af N200.00 (Two

Hundred Naira) only per day from the date of fi l“lmg Un: Suit on the 10™
i& fuyg
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of June, 2012 till the final judgernent as the custody fee on his
impounded car with Registration No. EQ 134 ABJ.

6. Adeclaration thal the Plaintiff is entitled to the payment of the surm of
MZ,000,000.00 (Two Million Naira) only as gzneral damages against the
Defendant for hitting and picking Oluwasehun =, Adeshola (Foad
Marchal Azsistant IT) an official of the Plaintiff which caused him serious
body injury, pains, trauma, financial loss, hardship, 'eeping the staff of
the Plaintiff out of his office, thereby creating a vacuum.

SUMMARY OF FACTS OF THE CASE

A Team of Operalives/Officials of the Plaintiff, comprising six (6) officers,

with Barclays Tol.oni Vola, Deputy Poute Commander as the Team Leader

and Oluwasehun S. Adeshola, Poad Marshal Assistant 1T a2z ane of the
members  of the Team were on duty on  the 24/02/2013 along

Lokaja/Ajact uta Poad, around Halims Hotel, by Ganaja Junction, on public

education, safety precaution and enforcement of traffic laws.

At about 16.20 hours, the Team accosted the Defendant driving in a Toyota
Camry (pencil light) with regisiration nurber EQ 134 AEJ with a primary
driving offenice of driving withaut using <eat belt which is zzid to be a
violation of Traffic Pules as an offence under section 10(4)(ee) of the Federal
Poad Safety Commission (Estadlishiment) Acr, 2007, The Defendant was
flagged down for interrogation and slowed down and told the Plaintff's
operatives that he was in 3 hurry 1o reach the Fei:leral Medical Centre,
Loboja, for medication and o would nat have time tdj_v’_vait o hear what the
Plzintiff’s Operatives ware saying o him abour trafﬁc;ifs_én.les. The Defendant
drove off and in the process hit ane of the Plainti'lzi_f_’ls Operatives, Marshal
Oluwasehun &, Adeshala and that he hit his waist fron%ii'x; ‘jthe service belt area

up to his chest on the windscreen and was dragged ;qhd rolled down to the
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bornet of the Defendant’s vehicle and sustained serious injury. The Plaintiff's
injured Operative was rushed o the 1'ogi State Specialist Hospital for
treatrnent and further talen to Torin, 'wara State for native medication. The
Defendant was later apprehended and taken to the Cormmand Office at Oba
Olaboyo Poad, Loloja, Fogi Siake and issuad with a Notice of Offence “heet,

stating theireon the offences of Seat Bell Viclation, Failure to Move Over and
Driver's Licence Violation. Thereafter, settlerment of the issues was initiated
by the Defendant with the Sector Head of Operations (SHOOPS) for the
rmatter o be settled amicably and for the treaiment of the injured Plaintffs
Operative. The car of the Defendant was impounded to ensure compliance
with the terms of settlernent. The Defendant did not mest his part of the
seftlement, that is, pay compensation for the itreatment of the injured
Operative. The Defendant rather ool out & summons against the Plaintiff
herein at the Federal High Court, Loloja, but the matter was strucl out for

non-service of pre-action notice on the Plaintiff (Defendant) in that case.

This case was first mentioned before me for izl de novio on the 22/05/2014.
Hearing in the matter commenced on the 24/06/2014. The Plaintff called
two witnesses in all to prove her claim. At the close of the case for the

Plaintiff, the Defendant opened his defence on the 18/04/16

TESTIMGHY GF PW1 — MAPSHAL OLUWASEUH S. ADESHOLA

On the 24/06/2014, the PW1, gave his evidence-in- Llne PW1 ztated that he

had made a statement on Qath dated the 05/06/2014. He adopted that
stateiment as his rwdu"u:e in this matter. The PW1 referred to paragraphs

14(a), 14(b), 15, 17, and 12 of his Written Witrness S-—utwnu—sm on Qath dated

the 05/06/2014 as well as paragraphs 34 and 32 of LI n~ Am@ru*l@r Statement
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of Claim and identified the photographs of the Defendant’s car talen afier
the accident accurred, the Medical Peport from the Specialist Hospital, |ogi
Statz, the medical bills which were faded and illegible, the request for new
original medical receipts, request by PW1 for a two-weel pass and the pass
given by the employers of PW1, and the letter from the Defendant’s Counsel
to the Plaintff and the reply by the Flaintiff to that letter. The same were
tendered in evidence and  without objéci;ic»n by the Defendant, the
photographs/documents were admithed Lny thizs Court and marled as E-hibits
F1, F2, F3, P4, PS, P6, and P7, respectively,

On the came 24/06/2014, the Defence Counsel, A. 0. Onoja, Esq., cross-
eramined the PW1 halfway, owing to the evcuse Ly the Flaintif's Counsel
that the PW1 was not feeling well and might not be able to go through with

the cross-examination.

Under croszs-examination, the PW1 responded that it is correct that he had
testified in this case before at the Federal High Court 2, Lokoja and that he
was standing in the witness bo when he testified. That there was air
conditioner in that Court Poom but that ke did not tell the Court that he was
disturbed by the air conditioner because it was not switched on. That it was
only the fan that was switchad on. PW1 stated that the incident that brought
the parties in this Court Imm nened on the 24/02/2013 at about 4.00pm. That

\\

he l'nows what a one - Vilornetre stretch of distance iz but he said he
could not tell, where a one-lilometre distance ﬁum Halims Hotel, Lokoja
going towards his office will terminate. He agreed thal: from the 24/02/2013,
the car of the Defendant was impounded and had beé}r‘]‘,in the Plaintifi's office

and was released at a time hr could not tell and did Aic ok bnow whether it was
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released after one year and/or February, 2014, but that the car was
eventually released. PW1 stated that he was nok aware that from February,
2012 to February, 2014, is ewactly one year. At this stage, the Court
observed that the PW1 was yawning and fidgeting as if uncomfortable in the
witness bov. The matier was adjourned. The cross-examination of PW1
continued on the 28/10/2014. PW1 responded thai he was not a Medical
Doctor. That he would not be able to analyse the Exhibit P3, an ~-Pay from
the Radiology Depariment of the I'ogi Staie Specialist Hospital. That he could
read and write. He read the writing on the Envelope of the “-Pay and
adriitied that na ailment was identified on the envelape. That the ~-Pay
films have na sickness written on therm. That Exhibit PS tided “The Feprint of
the Peceipts from Fogi Specialist Hospital” iz not 2 Medical Peport but that
Evhibit P4 is a Medical Peport. That in Exhibit P4, the Report, it is not written
that he, PW1, suffered from any ailment but that it was stated that fe Sllowing

RTA, he should be attended to. PW1 said he did not Fnow the meaning of

PTA. He then admitted confrary to his earlier assertion, that Exhibit F4 is not
a Medical Report but a letier writien to the office of PW1. N )
' ‘\;"\:/”ﬁ'J“’({JL
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PW1 further responded that he was not aware that immediately after the
incident, the Defendant wrote a letter to ithe Plaintiff's Department and that
the Plaintiff's Department respondad. The PW1 was shown Exhibit P7 and he
adrnitted that Exhibit P7 was the Peport from FW1's Department about the
correct position of what happened on the date of the accident and that the
other page of Evhibit P7 iz the leiter frorm the D-‘Il—’nduHL to FPSC, firom
Makpene Cl’nambers, dated the 1% March, 2013, That wh@n ne told the Court
that he was not aware that imrediately afier the u‘u“ldr*nl of 24/02/2013, the

Defendant wrote to the Plaintiff's Department, he «jlvl not mean o hide the
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truth from the Court. PW1 admitbed that attached to the Defendant’s letter
was a Notice of offence sheet from the Federal Poad Safety Corps (FRSC),
That the Notice of Offence Sheet is usually issued to a person for cammitting
an offence. That the person is meant to pay fine for the offences charged.
That after the person pays the fine, the vehicle is released bur that even if
fhe vehicle iz not released afier the payment of fine, it does not amount to
impoundiment. That where an offendar pays the fees shown on the Notice of
Offence Sheet and his car is not released, FRSC has the right to still hold the
vehicle if other izsues happened on the road. That on the charge sheet
anneved to Exhibit P7, three offences are reflecied and the fine & put together
amounts to a tokal of N15,000.00 (Fifteen Thousand Naira). That there was
no LBA teller to show that the fine of N15,000.00 was paid by the

Defendant. That without the payment of the fine of M15.000.00 shown on

\.,_

the Notice of Offence Sheet, the Defendant's vehicle cannot be released to
hirn. PW1 stated that ke did not lnow of any other charge imposing fine on
the Defendant which he was 1o pay before release of his vehicle. FW1 also
stated that he did not Fnow that after the payment of the | N15,000.00 by the
Defendant and failure to relezze his vehicle if there was no other cnarge

-t

imposed on him, would become illegal impoundment. FW1 was shown a
document and he admitted that it was the Fuling of ther Justice Chinda
sam-Wabo Adele (of blessed memary) of the Federal High Court and bears

three stamps of the Federal High court. FW1 agneed,usat at page 7 of the

Puling, the last paragraph beginning with “Thereafter” is there

PW1 also admitied Llui_' he made Additional ‘Stater'ent on Qath, in this
proceedings, dated the 13/10/2012 and signed by ||I|n fhat at paragraph
11(v) of the said Additional Statement on Oath, it is st Lcd that:
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That the photograph of ihe Defendant’s car atiachad to the Siatement
of Defence were taken in the Flaintiis office and noi on the road or
p/ 2 of the incidence.

PW1 adrmitted that he would be able to identify the pictures of the

Defendant’s car. He was shown the photographs and he said of the two

i

pictures, he could identify only one that had the PW1's office premises as
background. He said Evhibit P2 and one of the pictures which he could not
identify are not the same. That the cars in the two pictures are different.
That the damage on the windscreen in both pictures was on the driver's side.
That one picture has a belt mart on it while the other has no such belt mar-.
PW1 ctated that if someone holds his property wrongly and he sees it later,
he would collect the property and not say he is entitled o damages. He
admitied that he I'nows Ganaja Junction and that it is 3 very busy place. He
admitied that there is an obstacle at Ganaja Junction if coming from Dunamis
to town which mal.es motarisic to slow down before turning to go to town,
That from Halims Hotel to Ganaja Junction, there is g gradual hill, an
obstacle, and unflat road, a slope. He said vehicles can he fast on the slope.
PWL stated that the incident under reference happened on a sunday and
that vehicles of travellers do not usually Follow that Ganaja Road bui that
they follow tha road outside the town on the Highway at the back of the
town. That he and his Tearn were on the Poad on that date and their mission

was to provide safety o road users and nm'mﬁl‘uﬁn«l traffic offenders. PW1
stated that none of the road users an the day in que stion told him whether
he was a traveller ar r‘:qurni in Lokoja, That if anybc :dy told him that he was
on the bonnet of th Defendani’s car for one kil«:»rnetre, he could not tell
whether that person was telling the truth or lying. Tﬁe Cross-examination of
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PW1 was adjourned because it was past 4.00pm and the weather was
inclement.
Cross-examination of PW1 continued an the 02/03/2015. FW1 stated that he

would be able to identify a Driver's Licence issued by the Plaintiff. He
admitted that the photocopy of the Defendant’s Driver's Licence showr to
him was the old licence and the ariginal licence shown to the PW1 which
belongs to the Defendant’s Counsel was the new licence. That the axpiry
date on the Defendant’s licence was 15/01/2014 and the incident occurred

on the 24/02/2012. That by 24/02/2014, the Defendant’s Driver’s Licence

had not expired. 5,
| *—\%ﬁﬁﬁb
s

PW1 was shown E-hibit P2 (photographs) and he stated that the 1% pichura
shown to him indicated that the point of confact was on the driver's side.
That if & motorist is driving from Halims Hotel to Loloja, the driver's side will
be on the left hand side. The PW1 admilted that they were on the road on
that date of the incideni for safety of lives and to educate road users and not
to endanger their lives. The PW1 stated that for that reason, he ought o stay
on the right side of the road to flag motarists down and not in the middle of
the road. He admitked that it was only the wiper on the driver's side that got
destroyed, while the other wiper on the passenger's side was intact, FW1

further stated that the Defendant’s vehicle was in the process of pulling aver

when flagged down by him and that his colleague asted the Defendant for
his licence. That PW1 was then in front of the Defendant’s car and that the

Defendant tool: off again rather than show his licence and thereby he picled
up the PW1 on the bonnet of his vehicle. That he would nat Fnaw whether it

was hiz chest or head that had contact with the windscreen of the vehicle.
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PW1 zaid he did not bnow the length of pericd the Defendant's car was
impounded by the Plaintiff but that he did brnow that once an offender pays
iz fine or charges, the vehicle is usually releasad. PW1 admitted also that he

saw the Court Order releasing the Defendani’s vehicle while he was giving

evidence in Court during crozs-exarmination. PW1 said he had never hired a
taxi for a day and zaid he did not Lnow whether a tavi could be hired for
profit. within the range of N3,000.00 — N&,000.00 per day. The cross-

examination was over.

TESTIMOEY OF PWZ — ME. KOFO BARCLAVE, Depulty Foutes
Commandear, RC 8.3, Lolwja Sector Commznd of the Federal Road
Satety C@rps and Team Leadar

PW2 adopted his written staterment on Oath made on the 05/06/2014 on the
18/05/2015. The Defence Counsel cross-eramined PW2  forthwith, FW?
responded that he and his Tearn were on the road on the 24/7/2013 to
educate road users and that if the officers of FRSC do anything to endanger
life, it will mean that they are nob there to ensure s3 ety of road users and

that will be arbitrary and unconstitutional.

PW2 stated that he was not aware of any obstacle WL Halims Hotel, Laol:gja
where there is a T-Junction. That the sloping hill from the T-Junction at
Halims Haotel which ascends towards the Specialist Hospital gaie by the right
as one moves towards Lol'oja Town is not an obstacle. That at paragraph 13
of his written statement on Qath, he referred to bLnld up” area on 3anaja
Poad, Lokoja Metropalis and that the "build-up” " does HU [ refer to the build-
up of traffic but refers to the area which is (Im'he_ly populated. FW2 also
referred to paragraph 19 nf Inu staternent on Oath :—.rig;_li rmaintained that from
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Halims Hotel to Ganaja Junction where the Plaintiff's officials were standing,
the Defendant picled the victim, PW1, on the bonnet of his car and dragged
hirm from there up bt Fentoro Junction, that is Zenith Banl: Junction, 3
distance of about one Filometre (1hm). That it is nob correck to say that the
Plaintiff's officers pursued the Defendant to that Junction with their officer on
the bonnet before arresting the Defendant, That it is also not correct that it
was the Police Command that assisted the Flaintiff's officers to stop the
Defendant. That the PW1 was rushed to the ogi State Spedialist Hospital,
Lolja, after his encounter with the Defendant. FW2 stated that 23 the Team
Leadar, he wrote a detailed report of what happened on the date of the
incident and forwarded the same o his superiors in office and that the office
nstructed the I.éuwyeal‘ Lo write to the Defendant. He said that FW1 was not in
a position to endanger his life or the life of the Defendant but was
performing his lawful duky. PW2 said he would be able to identify o Driver's
Licence issued by hiz office, the Plaintiff. That such Driver's Licence loals lile
an ATM Card or a phone recharge card but has different features and that it
can be put in a wallet. PW2 was shawn the Driver's Licence belonging to Mr,
Maduabuchi O. Obey and he identified it as the old National Driver's Licence
iscued Ly his organization, the Plaintiff harein and that the evpiry date on it
waé 15/01/2014. PW2 agreed that as at the date of the incident,
24/02/2013, the Defendant’s Driver's Licence had not e-pired. FW2 was
shown E-hibit DT and he identified it as the Notice of Qffence Shest izsued
by him, PW2. He adritted that once an offender is booled and he has paid
the fine, he will be free to go. That if he pays and is not allowed o go, it
becomes arbitrary and it means he is deprived of the comfort of his car but
that he did not bnow whether such a person is entitled to damages. PW2 was

shown Exhibit P4 and Exhibit PS and he identified them as letters from the
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* Vogi State Specialist Hospital but that no sickness was diagnosed therein.
PW2 said he lnows the Police Motor Pol alse called Mobor Traffic
Department. PW2 stated that it is not all accident cases on the road that are
talen to the Police for prosecution, but thal: some of such cases are handled
by the Federal Poad Safety Corps (FRPED), although he could not tell how
many motor traffic accident cases the FRSC has prosecuted because he is not
in the Legal Department. That the Plaintiff also handles accident cases but
that they did not asl: the Defendant to male a statement. PW2 stated that
he reported the case fo the A’ Division Folice Station, Loboja on the Fallowing
datz but was not aware whether the Police there ool the staiement of the
Defendant. PW2 said he did not Fnow the name of the Palicernan wha was in
mufti bukb armed, a CID Officer, that arresied the Deferu:én'ut. FW2 zaid he
was shown Exhibit P4 again and that the amaoont written on the papers was -
nat clear. That they are emply papers. PW2 admitted that he saw the
Defendant’s car parlad in their office for aver a year. The cross-examination
of PW2 was aver. There was no re-examination of PW2. The Flaintiff's
Counsel, I. A, Tanl'a, Esq., applied o close the case of the Flaintff. The
Defence did not object, but asled for a date to open their defence. The
Plaintiff's application was granted. The matter was adjourned.

TEETINOMY OF DW1 ﬂ\—‘“

The Defendant opened his defence on the 12/04/2016. The Defendant Jave
evidence as DW1, the lone witness for the Defence. He swore an the Haly
Bible to speal: the truth only, while testifying in this makter. DW1 adopted his
Statement on Oath made on the 03/07/2013. OW1 referred to the
documents mentioned ab paragraphs 2 and 7 of his Statement on Osth. The
said docurmnents were not objected o and they were admitted in evidencea.

The Certificate of Incorporation of the Defendant’s Company, Total Diamond

e
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Company Limited was admitted in evidence and marled Exhibit D1. The
eceipts showing evidence of payment of Defendant’s children’s school fees
issued by Salem Wisdom School dated 25/05/2013 and 17/06/2013 were
marted E-hibit D2A and D2EB, respeciively. The Defendant’s Driver’s Licence
pleaded at paragraph 12 of ihe Statement on Dath was also tendered and
adrnitted in evidence and rnarked as E-hibit 03, but copies of the Vehicle
Licence, Foad Worthiness Certificate, and Insurance Certificate of the
Defendant’s vehicle were abjecied to by the Flaintiff on the grounds that
they were not certified true copies, being public docurnents and that there
was no 2xtract of Police Peport indicating the loss of the original documents.
The abjection of the Plaintiff was upheld and the said documents were not
admitted in evidence. Other documents tendered by DW1 and admitted in
evidence and marked accordingly are:

» Two photographs and negatives of the vehicle of the Defendant talen
at the premizes of the Plaintff - mentioned ab paragraph 26 of the
Staternent on Oath of the Defendant and marked as E-hibit Dda, C-b
and D4c.

> Letter to the Sector Commander, Federal Foad Safety Corpe, Lakoja,

dated the 10/02/2013, by Mal pene Chambers, marled as E-hibit DS,

> Letter from Ogwo Ameh & Co., o FRSC, Fogi Srate, Saector Command,

Lokoja, dated tha 12/05/2013, marl-ed as Evhibit DE.

» FRSC Charge Sheet and the attached UBA payment slips, marled as
Exhibit D7.
» 27 cash receipts issued in respect of vehicle No. VT %10 GGE

colleciively marked as Exhibit DAS.
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» Certified True Copy of the Ruling of this Court delivered on the
12/12/2013 in Suit No. FHC/LFI/CS/26/2012, Faderal Poad Safety
Corps v. Obay O. Maduabuchi, marled E-hikit 022,

» Tha enrolled order of the Court pursuant to the said Puling, marled
Exhibit D9h.

The DW1 was crosz-examined on the same date. Under Cross-e-amination,

DW1 responded that he had ever seen FRSC Fatrol Team while on duty on

the road. That he could not tell whether the FRSC Fatral Team an duty on

the date of the incident knew him but that he did not brnow any of them.

That nobady ashed him o present his driver’s licence or vehicle particulars

on that date or on any other date up until the date of his testirmony in Court.

That the Natice of Offerwze Sheet was given [o him a few days afier the

incident and that he collected it the same date he was given. That he could

not remember the eack date he collected it or whether it was two days after
he had visited the FPSC on the 25/035/2013 ko see the Head of Operations.

DWT stated that he was shocked when he was given the Matice of Offence

Sheet and saw the offences listed thersin, DW1 agreed that he stated in his

Stateiment of Defence that he was issued with a Nolice of Offence Sheet with

phantom offences. That he paid the fine instead of resorting to prasscution

because he desperately needed to get his car bacl. That it was the anly car
he had which he was uzing for running his business as well as his private and
farnily affairs. DW1 stated ihat he did not bnow the role of the FRSC but that
the Plaintiff's Counsel told him in Court while he was testifying that the rale
of FRSC is to aducate road users on proper use of the roads, and to enforce
traffic regulations and sanction offenders. DW1 admithed that he stated in his

Statement on Oath that while he was driving and the car was in motion, he

heard 2 bang on his car Lut did nof_know what hit his car. That fror the
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¢ phétograph tendered and admiited in evidence, he did not Fnow whether the

object that hit his car was a big one. The Plainkiff's Counsel put it o him that

Ay

he knew what hit his car and DW1 maintained that he did not Fnow what hit
his car. That he was in shacl when he heard the bang on his car and
panicled, thinking it was a borb blast, That he then stopped to find out
what had happened and saw men of FRSC surround him. DW1 stated that he
took: photographs of the scene of the incident as stated at paragraph 25 of
his Statement on Oath and that he would be ready to show the photographs
to the Court. DW1 stated that FREC officials then tool him to the front door
of the passenger’s side of the car and pushed him into the car and drove
away to their office. He admitied that the FFSC has the power to impound a
vehicle reasonably suspected to have been involved in an offence but that he
was nat aware that the reason his car was still impounded after he had paid
the fine for the offences was that he committed another offence which was
assault on an officer of the FRSC. DWI stated that he was not told that he
assaulted an officer of the FRSC on the date of the incident.

The Defence closed its case. On ihe 27/09/2016, the Defendani’s Counsel
adopted their final written address dated the 10/06/2016 and filed on the
13/06/2016 as their argument in this case. He urged this Court to diémiss the

Plaintiff's caze as it lacks merit, and grant the counter-claim of the

Defendant. $&é¥€§’i%§ <

Learned Defence Counsel subriited thatb they were served with the written
address of the Plaintiff but that it was not a legal document in the sense that
it did not bear the seal of a Legal Practitioner and that there was no evidence
that the person who signed the docurnent had paid the annual practicing
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fees, contrary to Fules 9 and 10, respactively, of the Pules of Professional

Conduct for Legal Practitioners, 2007,

He also submitied that LI e writhen address lacl ed the character of what a
written address ought Lu be in that it is not a highlight of |»Ier|d|ngs and
evidence before the Court. That the written address was full of exfraneous

matters not connected with pleadings or evidence befare the Court. He

nbjected to the content of paragrapin 7.9.1 and 7.9.7 of the written address

expunge the said paragraphs.

Learnad Deferce Counsel also noted that paragraph 7.9.2 of the written
address of the Plaintiff is conirary o what the Defendant stated in evidence
and that the Defendanl’s evidence speeaks for itself. Counsel urged the Court

to disregard the written address

I locked ai paragraphs 7.9.1. and 7.9.7 of the Plaintiffs Counsel’s Written
Address and T see phraszes auch as the defence is ignorant of the term...” and

“the Defendant Counter Claim iz mere fabrications and concoctment of false

The Court frowns at the use of such language in Court processes. Counsel
are enjoined to ke courteous and maintain polite language in documents as

well as in spolen language while addressing other Counsel.

Learned Counsel for the Plaintiff, F. G. Yawa, Esq., on his part, submitted

that he had paid his prac lung fee and for the :Lr|r|||' and seal. He pleaded
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with the Court for a stand down of the caze to enable him go bacl @ his
office and bring evidence o shaw that he was not in breach of Pules 9 and
10 of the Pules of Profeszional Conduct for Legal Practitioners, 2007, The
Court granted his application for a stand down. On Fesumption at 1.51pm,
the Plaintiff's Counzel presented documentary evidence of payment for the
NBA seal and practising fee. The Defence Counsel did not abject. The Court
was satizfied that the Plaintiff's written address was properly before the
Court and sigred and filed by a «:cnm:»eterﬂ: Legal Practitioner and ruled
accordingly. Plaintiff's Counsel then adopted their written address, dated the
04/07/2016 and filed on the 02/07/2016 as their argument in aupport of their
claim. He urged the Court to grant the reliefs being sought by the Flaintiff

and to dismiss the counter-clairm of the Defendant.

ARGUMENT OF THE PLAINTIFF IR SUPBORT OF 'H'HE CLEIM
In the written address of Counsel for the Plaintff, a brief skatement of fack of _
the case was given as well as the list of E-hibits kendered by the Flaintiff in
this case. Learned Counsel for the Plaintiff then raized four iss..ues for
determination as follows:

1. Whether the Federal Poad Safety Corps is statutorily empowered by

law to perform its functions.

™~

- Whether the impoundment of the Defendant’s vehicle was done within

its powers.

o

- Whether  the  Plaintiff is  entitled  to remedy  for  Assault  and
Compensation. |

4. Whether the Defendant is entitled to remedy for counter claim.
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On Iszue One, it was the arqument of learned Counsel that the Plaindff is

empowered under the Federal Poad Safety Commission (Establishment) Act,
2007 and the National Poad Traffic Fegulation, 2012, both enactments of the
National Assembly as provided for in section 4(2) of the Constitution of the
Federal Pepublic of Nigeria, 1999, That these laws have been enacted for the

good governance and general interest of the country. He also referred o

itern Na. 63 which mentions “Traffic” under Part A of the 2™ Schedule of the

1999 Constitution, which empowers the National Assembly fo enact laws on

Traffic of which the Federal Poad Safety Commission (Establishment) Act,

2007 and the National Poad Traffic Fegulations, 2012 are included.

Learned Counsel also cited and relied on cases which have decided that the
statute governing the Federal Poad Safety Corps is a valid enactment of the
National Assembly and thus Supreme Law. The cases are:
1. Kabir Akinibolo Esg. v. Federal Road Safety Coips & 3 Ois.,,
(viiveporied) Suit No. FHC/AB/CS/6.3/2015 per, Hon. Jusiice
F. 0. &. Ogunbainjo of the Fedaral Higsh Court, 4beckuia.
) Federal Road Safsly Corps v. Enwnanuel Ciosghbu, Suir No.
Ca/L/312/2014 (vinieporied), beore e Court of Appeal,

Lagos, sitiig 6n 51/16/263 4.

(&3]

Eksochia v. Civil Seivice Coinniission oF imo Staie & Ao
(L931) MCLE 15X ar 165,
a0 Usinan Mohaniiied v. A.5. Kaduna State & Anor. (1980) i

NCLR 117,

That in No. 4 case lisked above, it was held that a Federal Legislature is in a

position o legislate for the general interest of the whale country.
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On Issue Two, learned Counzel submitted that by section Ls) of the

Federal Poad Safety Cormission (Establishment) Act, 2007, the Flaintff is
empowerad to impound any vehicle with which an offerice under this Act is
reazonably suspected to have been committed. Ha further submitted that in
the instant case, the Defendant/Offender was reasonably suspected o have
cormmitted the offences of:
(i) Seat Belt Violaticn, section 10(4H)(ee) of the FRSO (Eztablishiment) Act,
2007. |
(i)Driver'z Licence Violation, section 10()() of the FRSC (Eztablishiment)
Act, 2007.
(iii) Failure to Mave Qver O'Ffern:.e, section 10(4)(q) of the FFSC
(Establishment) Act, 2007,
(iv) Assaulting Marshal on Duty, section 10(4)(za) of the FRSC
(Establishment) Act, 2007,
It was also the submission of learned Caunsel thal the FRSC is empowered to
arrest and [DI‘DSECLI’U’: pereons reazonably suspected c»F having committed any
traffic offence and serve such person with Court processes or MNotice of
Offence Sheet.

W

750@@\:\@\ -
Furthermare, learned Counsel argued that despite the ravizion in section
44(1) of the Constitution of the Federal Pepublic of Nigeria, 1999, (as
amanded)(1999 Canstitution) guarankecing o citizens, the right ot b be
deprived of mavable or immaovable property, an evce otion s provided in that
regard in section 44(2) of the same Constitution. That section 44(2) of the
1999 Constitution males  provision  that  mavable pr-:qaertyy can  be

compulsorily taben possession of, for the impasition of penalties or farfeiture

g
for breach of any law, whethas Gndier

N\

il process or after conviction for an

i
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offence. He cited and relied on the case of Eremd Williarms Nig. Lid, &
Awor. v, Federal  Road  Safely  Cominission,  Suii No.
FHC/L/CS/436/08 (unreporiad) before Justice J. T, Teoho of e

Federal High Court, Legoss o 26/85/251 -8,

On Issue Three of the Plaintiff, it was the submission of learned Counsel that

the Plaintiff waz wronged and so it is enfited to remedy. Thai from the
depositions of PW1 and PW2 in their Statement on Oath as well as the
eviderice and pleadings of the Plaintff, the Plaintff has proved within the
balance of probability that the Defendant’s dangerous driving caused the
injury sustained by Plaintiff's operative while the operative was on lawful
duty to wit:- saving of the lives and property of all road users including the
Defendant on the 24/02/2012. That the Flaintff is therefore, entitled to a
refund of the medical evpenses incurred on its injured operative and

compensation.

Learned Counsel then referred to sections 21, 242, 196 and 242 of the Penal
Code law of Nigeria for the definitions of “injury”, "voluntarily causing hurt”,
‘negligent conduct causing Jdangar too person or  property”, "valuntarity

causing hurt or grievous hurt by dangerous means”, respectively.

Learned Counsel also relied on section 267 of the Penal Code for the
definition of the offence of "Assault or Criminal Force to Deter Fublic Servant
from discharge of his duties” and section 72 of the Fenal Code which
pravides for compensation 15 an injured person by a convicked person. He

-

then urged the Courk ko Jrant compensation o the Plaintiff.
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On Iscue Four, the learmed Counsel submitted that the counter claim of the

Defendant i baseless and lacls substance to warrant any measure of

2, [ 2

success. He argued that from the facts and evidence, pleadings, depositions
and legislation presented before this Court by the Plaintff, it can be
reasonably deduced that the Defendant desired the consequences of his rash
and negligent act of assault occaszioning grievous hurt on the Faintiff's
operafive while hie was performing his statutory duty of protecting lives and

property of road users, which included the Defendant,

Plaintiff’s Councel argued that the Plaintiffs operatives and the Defendant
never I'new each other before the incident, so it was nob possible ta azcribe a
motive of malice or retribultion oh the part of the Flaintiff's operatives to have
sihgled out the Defendant among the multitude of road users plying the
sama road on that date and accuse him of wrongdaing if he did not cormmit
an offence. It was further submitted that at paragraphs 16-20 of the
Defendant’s deposition, the Defendant did admit that the nature of the road
at the point the Plaintiff's Operatives were stationed does not allow for fast
mavernant of vehicles and that the Defendant’s movement was slow. That as
such he ought to have ap|:'re|’1éru:led happenings around him particularly the
big bang on his vehicle. That the bang was actually the body of the Plaintiff's
operative who was trying to educate the Defendant, on the use of seat belt
while driving when the Defendant picled him on the bonnet of the

Defendant’s car.  That this shows that the Defendant l'new he had

committed an offence and tried o evade arrest.

L

D

arned Counsel submitted that PW1 and PW?2 testified that the three
Plaintiff's operatives, PW1, FW2 and Marshal Abdullzhi Adelunle Jimaoh
sighted the Defendant not using his seat belt and fagged him down as
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deposed in paragraph 9 of the depasition of PW1 and paragraph & of the
deposition of PW2. That the Plainkiff's cperatives sighted the Defendant in
breach of a primary offence, that is non-use of seat helt by the Defendant
and stopped him and then discoversed the secondary offence of Driver's
Licence violation an interrogation. He argued that there are no variations
between the depositions of PW1 and FW2 and the |’:l«4-ldllu_.)';, 2z the Defence
Counzel would have the Court believe as stated in his final written address,
That the Defendant drave dangerausly even in & Luilt-up area such as

Ganaja Junction because the driving may not have been fast but redlless
with grievous effect as the Plainiiff has proved in the plea ding to wit: the
Defendant picked up its cperative from the bonnet of his vehide B the
windscrean, while on interragation o evade arrest for the traffic offence he
Fnew he had committed. That the Plaintff, in furtherance of proving its case,
tendzred the photograph of the vehicle with belt marl an the bonnet and the
dent on the wincls«:re@"l._ That the Defendant’s statement in paragraphs 21
and 22 of his pleadings that he did nok I'now what hik his vehicle and that he

had no time o discaver that as he was iImmediately whisled away by the

Plaintiff's operatives is nol credible. d {X_;_LWQQ{:%@
. j‘

As regards the counter claim of the Defendant, the Plaintiff's Counsel stated

that it is mere f.;;ls,e ood. That the Defendant had admithed the COMMission
of the traffic offences listed in the Natice of offence :lu:t:f Jiven © him and

elected to pay the fines prescribed rather than be |:|u ecuted and did infact
pay the fines. He referred to sections 21 and 24 of the Evidence Act, 2011,

Plaintiff's Counsel alsa referred to section 32 of the Constitution of the
Federal Pepublic of Nigeria, 1999 as amended and submitted that the
Defendant deprived the Plaintiffs operative of right to life by causing him
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bodily harm (though not aciual death) and that the Flaintff's has adduced

evidence and proved the culpability of the Defendant in that regard.

It was the further submission of the Flaintiff's Counsel that the Defendant

desired the consequences of his actions as such cannot claim remedy against

an innacent person.

In conclusion, Plaintiff's Counsel submitted that the Flaintif had proved its
case on the balance of probability and urged the Court ko ook ab the
substance of the Plaintiff's arguments and grant judgement in Favour of the
Plaintiff as to the reliefs being sought,
DEFENDANT'S ARGUMENT IN OPPGSITION TO THE PLAINTIFF'S
CLAIM ON THE ORNE HAMD, AND OM THE OTHER ARGUMENT IN
SUPPORT OF THE COUNTER CLAIM.
In the writhen address of Counsel for the Defendant, the learned Counsel
gave a brief statement of fact of the caze from his perspective and then
depositad two issues for the determination of the Court, to wit:
Issue Oue:
Whether ithe Plaintiff Fas proved its case against the
Defendainé on balance of probalkiliEy and/or o5 preponderanca.
Issue Two:
Whether tiie Defandasit Counter Claimant made ocui 3 case of
Wioilg doliig againsi the Plaintifr in the circumstsiice of this
case that enlitles hini (o damages.
On izsue one, learned Defence Counzel, A. 0. Onaja, Esq., answered the

same in the negative. He submitted that it iz frite that the Plaintiffs case
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must succeed on the strengih of his own case o wit: by acceptable

creditable evidence as adduced vis-d-vis any sUpporting  evidence of the
Defendant both an cross evamination and evidence-in-chief. He relied on the
cases of OLUXKOYA V. ASHIRU (2005) all FWELR (P322) i479 at
1496-1-497, paragraphs A-E and C.B.C. V. INEC (20153) ALL FWLR
(Pt.665) 364 at 390 paragiaphs A-5. He argued that the Flaintiffs
Claims or case is anchored on fables contained in paragraphs 9-29, 31, 33,

34, 25-40, 42 and 46 of the Amended Statement of Claim.,

That the evidence of PW1 and FW2 in their depositions on oath were
properly distorted by answers on cross evamination.  That there is hothing
the Plainkiff can hold onto to prove this assertion of wrongdaing to the
Plaintiff againzt the Defendant as required by sections 137-135 o the

Evidence Act, 2011. He aiso relied on the cases of:

o ACN. v. LANIDO (2012) ALL FYWLR (PL630) 1138 paragraph
B. |

o JOLASUN v. EAMGEOYE (2011) ALL FWILR (P£595 ) 203 at 222
A-C, page 219 paragiraphs F-s.

« FLB.Plcv.Z. V. & CO. NIG. LTD. (2016) ALL FWELR (PT.51-1) P,
I at Pp. 21-32, paragraplis F-4 — 2l 1o the effect that he who as-
serts the positive must prove it.

It was the submission of learned Counsel that the Plaintif has ko

diccharge the burden of proof that the Defendant cormmitted  the

purported  road safety infractions contained in Exhibit D7 leading to
complaint in the correspondence in Evhibits 05, Da and P7 and the
allegations of dangerous driving o cause hurt «:;n‘n the personnel of the

Plaintiff beyond reasonable doybt, That those allegations are criminal in
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nature and the standard of proof required is proof beyond reasonable

doubt. He relied on the cases of:

<

ORGEIRIOWO v, AJASEN (1984) 1 SCRLE, 162 at 122,
o NWOBGDO v. ONOH (192.1) ¥ SCNLR 1.
> OMOREGEE v. LAWALNE (1554) 53--1 5.C. 108,

o ACN. v. LANIDO (2012) ALL FWLR (Ft.630) 1316 &t P.1338,
pairagiapti 5.

Furthermare, learned Counsel argued that lacl: of clarity in the pleadings
in paragraphs 9-29, 21, 22-40, 43 and 46 as to which among the men of
the Plaintiff was an eye witness wha bestified to the Fact that l':e'5|:u:yttecl
the Defendant without a seat belt and who specifically :{sl»;ed him for his

PR

vehicle particulars and drivers’ licence, there iz a doubt raised already.
That at paragraphs 12, 13, 14 and 27, of the Amended Statement of Claim
“officials” were conspicuously being mentioned while in paragraph 29 an

action or activity of a spedific official was mentioned. That such doubt

that has been raized in the pleading of the Flaintif© which relate to criminal

allegations against the Defendant, must be resolved in favour of the

person alleged & have committed such allegations, in this case, the

Dwalnhlui, a5 if those cl”‘—‘gdl_lt ns never happened. This Court was urged
0 S0 hold.

Learned Counzel also submitted that there was a muddle-up of events in
the depositions of PW2 and PW1. That paragraph & of the depositions of
PW2 did not disclose who spotfed the Defendant in the purported

Anfractionzs. That paragraph 9 atakes the actions of three officers and the

succeeding paragraphs 10-22 kel of w’:lf—injurious lies. That paragraph 23
»’\v‘\\tw .hiﬁ. » - .
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of the depositions an cath of PW2 is at variance with paragraph 27 of the
Amended Staternent of Claim as to the “official” demanding for and “17.
That at paragraphs 7-11 of the depositions on cath of FW1, are at
variance with pleadings. This Court was urged by Counsel o hald that Hhe
allegation of Poad Safety infractions levelled against the Defendant are
false and remain unproved within the standard of proal beyond
reasonable doubt in criminal cases. He urged this Court to view the
testimony of PW1 and PW2, in written depasition, respeck ively, as being at
variance with pleadings. He relied on a host of cases inc luding the cases

of:

Q<

BC CONSORTIUM v. RN.P.C. (2011) 4 S.C.N.J. 213,

o GLUKOVA v, ASHIRU (20835) ALL FIVLE

o ALANIOLA v. SOLANG (1956) 2 NWLE (P24 598 a¢ 623 SC.
o OKOKO v. DAKOLO (2006) 1-i NWLR (Pt.1000) 401,

o ADDAF v. USANDAWAKE (2055) 410 FWIR (Pe775) 360 at
2015 8-C.

He cubmitted that in these cases, the Supreme Court held that evidence
~which is at variance with the pleadings goes o no issue and should be
rejected and if admitted should be e:punged from the recard. That it will
be discountenanced beczuse it iz conbrary b the issues joined and

therefore goes to na issue worthy of consideration,

It was the further submission of Counsel that while the Flaintif has failed
to discharge the onus of proof on her in thess allegations, the Defendant

has _|_|rressfully refuted the allegations in the Statement of Defence as

every material allegation- u'“f?i;r:tw-- therein are rebuttable.  That by

' R O
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paragraphs 22-34, 25 and 39 of the pleadingy and the corresponding
paragraphs of the depositions on oaih of the Defendant, the Defendant
was able to rebut and challenge the Plaintff to & standstll as to
allegations of driving without a safety bell.  That the allegation of
dangerous driving on a road recognized by paragraph 13 of the deposition
of PW2 as at a built-up area of Ganaja was also debunled. That

paragraph 10 of the Statement of Defence also rebutked the allegation of
request for particulars of vehicle and that this was ventilated in the
Defendant’s depasitions on oath and the answers of FW1, PW2 and DW1
under cross-examination. That as for the issue of injury to the chest of the
Plaintiff's operative, PW1, the Defendant has clearly denied it and shown it
o be falze vide pleadings of the Plainiiff and depositions of the PW1 and

PW2 as well as the pleadings of the Defendant and cross-examination.

In addition, the Court was urged by the learned Counsel to hold that the oral
testimonies of PW1, PW2 and DW1 vis-a-vis the Evhibits tendered and
recognized are of material assistance in coming to the conclusion that the
against the Defendant. He relied on the case of Ukacgbu v. Nwololo
(2005) ALL FWLR (PL. <66) 1552 st 1853--1 H-A and urged the Court to
put the evidence adduced by both parties on an imaginary scale and weigh
one side against the other and then decide upon the preponderance of
credible evidence which weighs more. Learned Counsel alsa referred the
Court to the pieces of oral evidence of PW1, FW2 and DW1 and quated a
large portion  of the response of PW1 under cross-eramination  and
paraphrased the testimony of PW2 under cross-eramination as well as

Evhibits before the Court, particularly, Exhibits F1, F2, P4, PS, P7 and E-hibit

s it e e O of 2 ¥ s e e e
= 7 Iy
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D4, to draw aut contradictions in the evidence of FW1 and FW2 vis-a-vis the
pleadings in the Amended Statement of Claim. | |

It was the submizsion of learned Counsel that the Flaintiff has failed to prove
the criminal allegations and sundry izsues levelled against the Defendant and

urged the Court o resclve issue one in favour &f the Defendant.

Issue TWo:
Whether the Defendant Counter Claimant made out a case of
wrongdoing against the Plaintiff in the circumstance of this case that

entitles him to damages.

On Issue Two, learned Counsel aubmitied thatb they were adopting the
arquments canvassed in respect of izsue one. That "L'h«': Defendant Counter
Claimant in proof of his counter claim adapted paragraphs 1-63 of his
Statement of Defence and also adapied his deposition on Oath to ventilate
his defence by o hallenging the claims and allegations of the Flainkf and o
prove the counter claim. He relied on the case of Jofgsun v. Bamgboye
(2011) ALL FWLR (595) 2-3 at 322 Paragiaphs A-C, Page 219

Paragraplis F-G. fNS, *EX?@:{%@
; | - 3___'

He argued that the character of the evidence adduced at the trial, especially
the cross-examination of PW1, FW2 and DW1 left no ane in doubt that the
Defendant counter claimant was injured by the Plaintff in that a wrtangl’ul
damage was caused to the windscreen of the Defendant’s car. That
paragraphs 10, 22-56 of the Statement of Defence and  carresponding
depositions on Oath have not been punctured by the Plainkiff and so remain

the true position of the facts of what tranzpired on the road on that date.
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Learned Counsel alzo submitted that the Defendant rendered E-hibits Dl-
D10 in hiz defence and alsa as proof of his counter cairm. That the Exhibits
are ras [psa loquitur in terms of the injuries suffered by the Defendant
hecause of the illegal acts of the Plaintiff. That it was the deposition of the
Defendant that he was never asled ko produce any licence or vehicle
particulars and under cross-e-amination the Defendant maintained that he
was never asled o produce his licence or vehicle particulars, except in the
Court. That during cross-examination, FW1, and Pw2 have identified the
Driver's Licence of the Defendant, that is, Exhibit D3 and that it had not
expired as at the time the incident on the road happenad. That the Plaindff’s
personnel tool: the laws into their hands by refusing o releaze the vehicle of
the Defendant: Counter Claimant to him even after payment of the fees for
fhe offences charged on the offences charge sheet which was given to him.

He referred to E-hibits D9 and D10 supported by E-hibite 01, D2, and D3,

Learned Counzel urged this Court to hold that the Defendant counter
claimant having successfully established his counter claim against the

Plairitiff, i entitled to the Judgement of this Court in terms of his reliefs.

Resolution of the issues

The Plaintiff herein sued the Defendant by way of Writ of Summons seeking
declaratory reliefs and special damages to defray the cost of treatment of
injuries sustained by the Plaintiff's operative awing to the dangerous driving
of the Defendant while the Plaintiff's operatives were at Ganaja Junction of
the Loltbja - Ajao!:Uta Poad on statutory duty on the 24/02/2016.  The

general damages _againét the Defendant for hitting and picking the official of
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the Flaintift with his car which caused him body injury, rauma and financial

loss, keeping the Plainiiff's staff out of office, thereby creating a vacuum.

The Defendant on its part denies the allegation and has instead claimed that
it was the Plaintiff'z agent (Marshal Oluwaszeun 5. Adeshala), who wrongfully
darmaged the Defendants car and that the Plaintiff, therefore, is not entitled

to any declaratory orders or damages.

The Defendant also filed a counter claim against  the Plaintff seeling
declaratory reliefs with regard to his legal rights and protection and
particularly in relation to his car which he said was arbitrarily damaged and
wrongfully seized by the Plaintiff/Counter Defendant and that the actions of
the Plainfiff's staff were illegal and unconstitutional.  He also asled for

injunctive relief and general and evemplary damages of N2m.
The issues for determination are:

1. Whather @ Plaintiif has proved ivs case to entitle it to the ie-

liefs souit,

N i

2. Wheihier the Dailzndand has proved fis cosmier claiis to entide

-

hifiii to the ralieis sought.
Issue I:

Whetlher the PlaindlT has proved its case to entitls it o tHie Rafief
SOUGIIL,
The Plaintiff avers that its siv afficers were on patrol duties to educate road
users on road safety tips and fo enforce raffic laws. That by 16:20hours,
the Defendant drove in hiz Toyota Camry car with Fegistration No. EQ 134
AE] to the Plainkiff's patrol point and the Plaintiff's officers noticed that the
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Defendant was driving without using seat belt. The Plaintiff's officers Mzagged
down the Defendant o educate him on the impartance of using seab belt
while driving.  The Defendant slowed down as if to stop buk only told the
Plaintiff's officer’s that he was in & hurry o reach the Federal Medical Centre,
Loloja, for his medication.  That the 1% and 2™ Arresting officers of the
Plaintiff approached the Defendant to speal with him but that the Defendant
then zoomed off dangerously undermining the danger in driving with anger,
That the Plaintiff’s firsk arresting officer was able to dodge the Defendant’s
car as the Defendant drave dangerously but that the Plaintiff's 2™ arresting

Marshal Oluwaseun S. Adeshaola, Poad Marshal Azsistant 11T was not able to
ezcape the effect of the dangerous driving of the Defendant “hecause of the
close range of contact he had with the Defendant” and that the said 2
arresting Marshal was hit by the Defendant’s car and he landed on the
sonnet of the car ﬁ‘c»m his waist service belt to the top of the bonnet, hitting
his chest on the windscreen of the car, which gob braben. The Flaintff
pleaded the photographs of the Defendant’s car shawing the service belt shid
mark: and the brolen windsoreen of Defendant’s car, Ses :varagrap»l‘ns 50,7,
2,10, 11, 14, 15, 20 of the Amended Statement of Claim and Exhibits P7 and
P7a of the Plainkiff referred o in paragraph 20 of the Amended Statement of

Claim. e e 7 C

In their evidence before the Court. The Flainbiffs bwa witnesses, FWIL,
Marshall Oluwaseun S. Adeshola (PMA TII) and FW2 Barclays Taloni 1ola,
Deputy Faute Commander, stated the sarme story. See paragraphs 5-14 of
the written statement on oath of the PW1 and paragraphs 5-19 of the written

statement on oath of the PW2.

That as a rezult of the dangercus driving of the Defendant which led to his

car hitting Plaintiff’s Marshal who was on duty, the said Marshal sustained
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injuries on his chest and was rushed o the 1ogi State Specialist Hospital for
freatment and subsequently was given a pass for two weels o go to his
home tawn for native treztment and incurred evpenses amounting o a total
of N120,000.00. See paragrjphc 21-24 of the Amended Statement of Claim
and paragraphz 15-22 of the written statement on oath of PW1 and
paragraphs 13, 21 of 27 of the written statement on oath of PW2 and
Exhibits P2, P4, PS5, P2 and P9 of the Plaintff. It was also averred at
paragraph 25 of the Amended Statement of Claim that the Defendant hit the
Plaintiff's Marzhal and still drove off with the Marshal victim still on the
bonnet of his car and it toal the effort of the PW2, other Foad users and an
unnamed Policeman in Mufti to cause the Defendant o stop. That the victim
was rushed to the Fogi State Specialist Hospital, Lol aja, while the Defendant
was requested by the PW2 to show his Driver's licence and vehide particulars
which he did nat do, hence his car was impounded by the Plaintiff's Marshals.

That the Defendant was given Notice of Offerce Sheet and he paid the fines

for the three offences but made only part payment of the impoundrment fine.
That his car was nob therefore released, more so, that he failed o also
refund the medical bill of the Marshal victim he had Rit with his car on the
24/02/201%, as agreed between the Defendant and the Plainbff's Sector
Head of Operatives (SHOOFZ) on the 27/02/2013. See paragraphs 25, 26,
27, 22, 29, 22-35 of the Amended Staterent of Claim and paragraphs 23,

24, 26 and 23 of the Statement on Oath of the FW2.

Under cross examination the PW1 mainkained his evidence as contained in

his written deposition on aath. That while on duty with rmembers of his team
at Ganzaja Junction, -Lokaja, the Defendant was driving along that Laloja —
Ajanluta Poad and waz maving towards Lol oja fown then at close to Halims

Hotel, the Plaintiff's Operatives sighted the Defendant driving withaut
e LR UE TN
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wearing a seat belt. That the Defendant was fagged down and he slowed
down but picled up momentum again, unespectedly and hit the FW1 with
his car and caused him to hit his chest an the windscreen of the Defendant’s
car and it got brolen. The Plaintiff averred at paragraphs 14 and 15 of the
Amended Staterment of Claim to the effect that when flagged down by the
Plaintiff's Marzhals, he slowed down bul again within a short span of time the
Defendant zoomed off dangerausly and in his dangerous driving manner, the
Deﬁ':ru:lant'hil: the Plaintiff's Marshal. That the PW1, was talen to the |ogi
State Spedialist Hospital for treatment. The ~-Fay of the chest of the FW1,
Exhibit D4 and the Hospital bills, Exhibit P5 are evidence that the FW1 was
reated at the l'ogi State Specialist Hospital, Lolaja. The evidence of FW1L
was corroborated by the evidence of FW2 and their pieces of evidence are in

conzonance with the averments in the Amended Staterment of Claim.  The

Defendant males heavy weather of the fack that in E-hibit PTa the Plaintii
wrote in reply to the Defendant’s Sclicitors letter that the Plaintff was
rushed to the Federal Medical Centre, Loloja instead of the Fogi Stake

Spedialist Hospital, Laloja, %;\;—;g e
P& ' iG A
)

That by mentioning the Federal Medical Centre in E<hibit P73 and the
averment in the Statement of Claim referring o the 1agi State Specialist

Hospital, Loloja, as the hospital which treated the Plaintiff's officer after the

incident of 24.02.2012, creates doubt a5 to whether the Flaintiff's officer was

hit by the Defendant’s car at all, or it is just falsehond. See naragraph 25 of

the Statement of Defence. Well, the Plaintiff has explained the mention of
two different hospitals with regard to the same situation as a miv up on the

part of the Salicitor wha wrate the reply, Evhibit P7a.

At paragraph 16 of the * Pwply Lo the Statement of Defence and Counter
Claim” It is stated as follG ﬁ/‘dﬂ ”‘U" ;"‘\
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The Flaintiff contend (sic) in response b3 paragr. aph 39 of the
Statement of Defencz and the particulars of fraud that when the
Flaintiffs official was rushed io the State Specialist He ospital and later
went to llorin for more medication for about two monihs, ihe Marshal
and his tzam leader were not around to =l the Flaintifis lawyer the 1**

hospital he was rushad to whan the Solicitor’s lettar was beine g replied.

The e-planation above sounds credible, but assuming it was not, the

contradiction about the haospital the Flaintf's officer was talen to iz not a

(.D

erious ane. There iz evidence that the Plaintiffs officer was hit by the
Defendant’s car and was talen to a hospital. That is what is important.
Moreaver, in the Amended Staternent of Claim and the Staterments on oath of
PW1 and PW2, respectively, the only hospital mentioned in thase documents

is the 17ogi State Specialist Hospital, Lokoja.

The allegation of the Defendant that the Flaintiffs operative  hit the
windscreen of his vehicle with an object and brole it does nat sound
credible. The Defendant admitted under cross evamination that he had ever
seen patrol Tearm of the FPSC an duty on the road befare. Sirnilarly, at
paragraph 14 of the Statement of Defence, the Defendant admitted that
personnel of the Plaintff usually stand at the Ganaja Junction. He also said
on the date of the incident, the 24/02/2012, he could not tell whether the
officers of the Plaintiff on patral ab Ganaja Junction, Lolaja were holding
quns or stichs, The Defendant could not, therefare, tell for sure that it was
the Plaintiff's afficer that deliberately smashed the windscreen of his car,
Mareover, the Defendant also admitted under cross examination that hefore
the date of the incident of the 24/02/2013, he did naot Fnow whether any of
the officers of the Plaintiff's Pﬁi'i'C'l Tr~am on duty on that dake at that point

new whn e was buk Hmi/i u%t\f\\/ [’fl & that he did ot Inow any of them.
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. It does not, therefore, siand to reason to infer that the Flaintifi's operatives
probatbly had an ave to grind with the Defendant and thus maliciously

damaged the Defendant’'s Car.

[ have looled ab Part II of the Federal Poad Safety Commission
(Establis I'u'l‘wnt) Act, 2007, in volume &, Cap.F19 of the Laws of the
Federation of Nigeria, updated to 31/12/2013 and section 16(1) thereof
establizhes the Federal Poad Safety Corps, the Flaintiff herein. The Corps
Marshal and other members of the Corps shall perform their functions under

the direction of the Federal Road Safety Commission.

Under subsection :(_2) of section 10 of the Act, the functions of the
Cornmission are spelt out. In section 10(3), the responsibilities of members

of the Corps, the Plaintiff herein, are spelt out to include, inter alia:
2(a)  preventing or minimizing accidents on the highways.
(O)~(0) oo

() educating drivers. motorists and other members of the public

genzrally on the proper use of the highways.
(K)-(1) e

(o) making 17:’L7L//7l/0/7“ in pursuance of any: uf the functions assignad

to the Corps by or under this Act.

(P)(r) .. e

\‘( U NU{*‘

<
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Under subsaction (4) of section 10 of the Act, the members of the Corps are
conferred with powers to arrest and prosecute persons reasonably suspected

of having cormmitted any traffic offence as follows:

Section 10(4): In the exerdiss of tha functions conferred b V- this section,
members of the Corps. shall have power o arrest and
prosecute  persons  reasonably  suspectzd - of  having
committed  any traffic offence including the following
offences and serve such persons with Couri processes or a

notice of oifence sheet.

(a)  obstructing the highway with a vehicle or any other cbjact,

(1) being on a road without the driver of the vehjcle ciing in

displayed.

possassion of a valid driving licence or permit required by law.

(1) driving a motor viehicle on a highway racklzssly or negligeniy or

at a speed or in a manner which is dangerous o the public,

(k) driving a vehicls not fitted with seat bslts or where fittad, not

wearing them while the vishicle is in Motion.

Additional powers are vested in the Corps under subsactkion (%) of secion 10

as follows: I
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FENERAL HIGH COURY
LAKO A

S e o s e o s e e s e S e e e e - cee o BETUERDER RTINSk e LTI
JUDGEMENT IN FEDERAL ROAD SAFETY gQR@ﬁW'myﬂADUABUCHP - SUIT NO. FHC/LKI/CS/26/2013
/, x\'f“' T
" . o {E cﬂ-} '
{67 R e (B,

4 - * Fid
ciap—M—7 &

’ =~

>/
, m&é_,




10(5).  In the discharge of the funciions of the Coips by or under
this Act noiwithstanding the provision of saciion 15(1) of

this Act. a member of the Corps shall have power to —

(al Arrest any peraon suspected of cammitting ar having com-

mitted an offence under this act;

(h) impound any vehicls by 1/1//7/'5/‘7 an offence under this Act is
reasonanly suspacted to have baen committad, and

10(6) The drivar or owner of the ehiclz shall be liable to pay a
sum of N20O for every day or part thereof during which the

vehicla is datained:

rovided that........................

The corpc ,ratw reading of the above quoted sactions of the Law are to effect

that the Plaintiff's aperatives were lawfully on patrol on the Foad at zanaja
Junction Lalioja, performing their statutory duties. See the case of Federal
Poad Safety Commission v. Emmanuel A, Ofceghbu (unreported) /\| peal No.
CA/L/412/14, at page 24 where the Caurt of Appeal held, Per 1. 5. Thejegh,
JCA, that the Federal Foad Safety Commission (Establ::.lmrmnt) Act, 2007,

establiches the FPSC and that the 2007 Act and the Mational Foad Traffic

equlations 2012 made pursuzant to Section 5 of the Act, 2007 have the force
of law and they empower the FRSC o perform all the uL»y ctives of the Act,
2007.

The facts of the case herein show that the Defendant comimitied the primary

offence of driving a vehicle fitted with seat belts but not wearing the sea

belt vvhilp the vehicle was in maotion contrary o CF'F[IUH 10\4)(@:), of Lllp
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Federal Poad Safely Commission (Establishment) Act 2007, Cap. F19 Laws

of the Federation of Nigeria, updated to 2013,

On being stopped, the Defendant did not produce his driver's licence and
vehicle particulars on dernand by the Flaintiff's Marshals on duty, particularly,
Barclays Toloni "olo, Deputy Foute Commander, for mnapection, See section

10(4) (h) and (§) of the Act as well as sechion G022 and () Llru:ler

PART VII of the Mational Foad Traffic Pequlations 2012 made pursuant ko the

Act as subsidiary legislation.

Furthermore, under section 226(1) of the National Foad Traffic Fegulations,
2012, itis provided that:

S.226(1): It shall be an offence for any: driver of @ motor vehicl b wiltully
121l or refuse to bring his vehicle to a stop oF othernwise flse ar
attempt o fl2e from a Faderal Foad Sarzty Corps member in

Uniform. when given visual or audio signal to bring the vehicle to

a stop. . %ﬁ\—/mﬁﬁ
j ‘

(2)  Under this regulation “signal” may be by hand. voica, emergancy

lights or siren.

In the prezent case, the Defendant refused ar failed o move over to the

parting side of the road to be educated on the impartance of the use of seat
belt, while driving. He therefore refused o obey directions Jiven to him by
the Plaintiff's Marshal, an appropriate autharity, o stop the vehicle and maove
aver and parl, contrary to Pegulation 226 of the National Poad Traffic

Regulations, 2012,

In the result, T find that the Deputy Poute Commander, PW2, was in arder o

have issued the Defendant with & Notice of offence sheet Exhibit F1, on

-
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which it was indicated that the Defendant was baoled for three offerces to

]

wit:  Driver's licence vialation, failure to move aver and seat belt violation,

The fines were indicated on the Notice of offence sheel. The Deferndant was
alzo required to pay the sum of N200.00 (Two Hundred Naira) per day far
the period his car was detzined at the premizes of the Plaintif from the
24/02/2012. That the Plaintiff did pay the fines an the offences as charged
on the Notice of offence sheet but failed to pay the correct amaunt for the
period for which his vehicle was impounded and 1ept at the |:nremises'of the
Plaintiffs. By approximate calculation, from the 24/2/2013 when  the
Defendant’s vehicle was impounded and defained o the dake he paid the
fines on the 04/03/12 is a period of seven days. The Defendant paid the sum
of N1,200.00 for the seven days the vehicle was detained. The Flaintiff
alleges that the Defendant did not pay the full fine for the number of days
the vehicle was detained at their premises. Tt appears that the Defendant did
not pay MN200.00 for the seventh day of the detention of his Car. The sum of
N200.00 will be added to the spedial damages, accordingly. The F’Ieﬁntil’f alzo
avers that the Defendant had agreed with the Sector Head of Operations to
pay bacl to the Plaintff the hospital bill and evpenses incurred for the
traditional medicine application on the Flaintif's Marshal that was hit by the
Defendant’s car on the 24/02/13. There is no proof that there was any such
agreement: between the SHOOPS and the Defendant, The Defendant denies
maling such undertaling when he went to see the SHOOFS. This means that
what is before the Court in that regard is the word of the Plaingiff against
that of the Defendant. As there is no documentary evidenace ko show in that
regard, I find that the Plaintiff's officers had acted arbitrary in beeping the
Defendant’s car after he had paid the fines indicated on the Natice of offence
sheet and T 20 haold, See the response of PW1 and FW? under cross
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evamination, respectively, that once an offender pays the fines indicated on
the Notice of Offence Sheet given tw him, his vehicle is usually released o
hirn PW2 stated further that if thereafter the offenders car is not released, it

becomes arbitrary act on the part of the Plaintffs personnel and it means

that the offender is deprived of the comfort of his car.

The evidence of PW1 and PW2 as T earlier stated, support the pleadings of
the Plaintff that the Defendant refused to move over when ﬂagge«fl down by
the Plaintiff's officers and in driving off in disregard to the instruction Fo stop
and move over, the Defendant recllessly hit the Plaintiff's officer, PW1, and
he sustained chest injury. The windscreen of the Defendant's vehicle Jot
brol-en by the incident. The Defendant, to my mind, was the architect of the -
damage to his vehicle and he cannob therefore tum round o blame the
Plaintiff's officers for damaging his car by hitting the windscreen with an
object which he did not mention by nare even though the incident
happened in broad day light, about 16.20 hours. T do- nok believe the
narration of the Defendant in the above regard, that Plaintiffs officers
smashed the windscreen of his car with an object or stone. The Defendant
cannot therefore, hold the Plaintiff's officers lizble for the said damage to his

car and I so hold.

Having held that the Defendant refused o obey the instruckion of the
Plaintiff's officers to stop his vehicle on the highway and mover aver, 1 hold
that the Defendant did drive his car with Pegistration No. EQ 134 AEJ in a
reclless manner and that led to the injury sustained by the Plaintiff's officer,
Oluwaseun &. Adeshola, Marshal Assistant 111, The said siaff, PW1, suffered
injury in his chest and even as at the fme he was giving evidence in Court in
this case, he showed sigins of discomfort in his chest and complained of the

sarme as he told the Court that the cold in the air conditioned Courtroom and
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feeling sicl. Particulars of special damages have naot, however, been proved
by the Plaintiff.

The anly evidence of payment of hospital bill at the logi State Specialist

Hospital is the sum of N2,450.00 anly. The surm of ME,000.00 said o have
been spent for “General Pravisions for the period” of the vickims reatment is
also reazonable, but there is no documentary evidence to the claim that
N50,000.00 was spent on hospital treatment of the victim or that M-, 000.00

was spent for traditional reatment. Hospitals usually issue receipts for

payment made for the treabment of their patients as shown on their invoices,

In the present case there are no such receipts evcept the receipt from the
Fogi State Spedialist Hospital which indicates that a batal sum of N3,450.00
was paid for the treatment of the Flaintiff's officer. The Plaintff did not
mention the village of the native doctor or the narme of the said native doctar
which was paid by his employer to treat him. See paragraph 19 of the written
depasition o oath of PWI before the Court. T find that the Plaintiff is entited
0 the sum of N9,450.00 plus the N200.00 custody fee for one day maling it

c e : A
- atofal of N9,650.00 only as special damages. gj}yf:\-rh?f(‘:f{i,
Ty

VR
It is clear to me that the preponderance of evidence |:~:-iﬂt5 Lo the conclusion
that the Plaintiff's officer waz hit by the Defendant’s vehicle while he was
performing his lawful Juty and he was injured in the chesk and treated at the
Vagi State Specialist Hospital, Loloja and also ablained a pass Jiving him
permizsion for two weels ta trave to his home town, Ilorin, |'wara State for

traditional treatrment.

This evidence goes to prove beyond reasonable doubt that the Flaintf was
hit by the Defendant’s car az a result of the rackless driving of the

Defendant. The standard of proof of a criminal offence, even if alleged in a

-y =
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civil case iz praof beyond reasonable doubt. See zection 125(1) the Evidence
Act, 2011. The Superior Courts have held that “proof beyond reasonable

doubt” does not mean “proof beyand all shadow of doubt”,

The above was the holding of the Court of Appeal, per Adeleye, J.C.A. in the
case of AMUEA V. STATE (Z002) FWLF (FT.25) 332 when the Court

onsidered the import of section 122(1) of the repealed Evidence Act, which
is in pari matzra with section 125(1) of the Evidence Act, 2011, In the said

case, the Court of Appeal further held that:

Thus Iif the evidznce js so strong against a man as to leave only a
remote possibility in his favour which can be dismissed with the
sentence "of coursz2 it is possible but not in the least probable” the

case Is proved beyond reasonable doubt.

In the present case, the Defendant c«:»r.teruzled that he slowed down to
negotiate the bend at the Ganaja Junction ho«uhng fowards Lokaja town and
20 ha could not have Zoomed off at a speed and hit the Flaintiff's operative.
Hiz contention sounds possible but it is not in the least probable. The
Plaintiff's witnesses, hawever, testified that the Defendant slowed down
- when he was flagged de wii but again ~oomed off in order bo avaid answering
questions with regard b his primary offence of driving a vehicle without the

seat bel on. That to my mind, is a more probable occurrence.
section 345(1) (a) of the Criminal Code Act provides that:

5.343(1): Any person who in a manner so rash or negligent as to endanger

human life or to be likely to cause harm to any other person.

(2) drives any vehicle or rides on any public way, is guilty of a

misdemeanour, and is |IrIL'lH Lo impriscnment for one year.
‘(r\‘
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In the present case the Plaintiff has adduced sufficient evidence and proved
beyond reasonable doubt through PW1 and PW2, eye witnesses, with FW1

being, infact, the victim of the Defendani’s rash and reclless driving on a

public way on the 24/02/2012, as analysed above.

Iszue one s resalved in favour of Plainkiff.  The Flaintiff is, however, only

entitled (o special damages in part az well as general damages but not
entitled to payment of the sum of N200.00 (Two Hundred MNaira) per day
from the 02/02/12 till filing the suit an the 10% af June, 2013 which is 100
days amounting b N20,000.00 (Twenty Thousand Naira) and/or 200,00 per
day from10/06/13 :till the final judgement as custady fees on his impounded

car with Pegistration No. EQ 134 ABJ, as the impoundment of the said

vehicle became illegal after the Defendant paid the fines shown an the Natice

of offence sheet given to him and I so hold,

Issuec Two
Whether the Defendant has proved his Counter Claim o entitle him to

the relief sought. :N\;%’\EE,%,

The evaluation of evidence under issue 1 already shows that the personnel of
the Plaintiff did wrong when they =tll bept the Defendant's vehicle
impounded at their premizes even after the Defendant had paid the fines
impased on him for committing traffic offences. PW1 and PW2 also admitted
under cross evamination that it becomes an arbitrary act to still detain the
vehicle of an affender when he has paid the fines imposed on him in respect
of trafﬁc. infractions. The PW1 and FW2 also admitted under cross
eramination that the Defendant’s car was still impounded at the Flaintiff's
premises for about a year even after he had paid the fines impozed on him.
See Exhibit D7, This implies that the Plaintff's personnel acted arbitrarily in
further detaining the vel'licl}a.. uf\‘tl"(kl&:ﬂ:n«lanL after he had paid the fines. A

£ e
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This Couit, in a Puling delivered on the 12/ 1272013, also made an Order
directing the Plaintiff tw release, forthwith, the Defendant’s car with

Pegistration Number EQ 134 AR). See Exhibits D9a and D9,

The Def@ndunt has adequately adduced evidence to show that he was using
his car for his family and company business before the impoundment of the
car by the Plaintiff's perzonnel on the 24/2/13. That the impoundment of his
car caused the Defendant and his family hardship, shoc: and economic
paralysiz and cost of earning from his business aciivities, See paragraphs 53
and 58 of the Statement of Defence.  The Defendant, also, at paragraph
52(1) (i) gave particulars of hards ship and financial 1oz and receipts of
payment for car hire of vehicle with registration No. =T 210 GGE. Ses Exhibit
D8. |

The Counter Claim of the Defendant succeeds only in pait and only to the
evtent that the refusal of the Plaintiff to release the car o the Defendant on

the 04/2/12 after the payment of the fines impased on lim for three offences

as listed on the notice of offence sheet was arbilr ary and illegal.  The
impoundment of the Plaintiff's car after the incident of 2 4/2/13 was lawful
and the fines |rn|*.mc<'ar| on him were in order. The Defendant is therefore not

entitled o a refund of the N15,000.00 he paid as fines
Conclusion and Verdict
the whole, while the Plaintiff succeads in part in its ¢ airn, the Defendant

also succeeds in part in his counter claim.
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The Plaintiff asted for award of special and general damages agJainst the
Defendarit and the Defendant in his counter claim has as)ed for special,
general and exemplary damages. The primary funcic noof damages, is o
compensate a person for breach of his Is~g—|l right by the wrongful act of the
Defendant which caused harm. See the case of UDOFEL LTD. o 2 ANOPR V.
SITVE BANI PLC (2014) LPELF — 23732 (CA) F.29 E-C

Now, general damages are described as darnages the law will presurme to be
the direct, natural or probable consequence of the act complained of,
whereas special damages ares such damages as the law will not infer from the
nature of the ack complained of. Spedal damages are - ‘ceptional character
wise and must be specifically pleaded and strictly proved. The difference
between generall and specific damages is that in the case of general
damages, the Court can male an award when it cannot point out any
measure of assessment evcept what it can hold in the apinion of a
reasonalbile man. In the case of spedial damages, all the losses claimed on
every itern must have crystallized in terms and value before rial.  See the

cases of NIGEFIAN COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION V. MOTOP. PHOME
LTD. 2 ANOF (2014) LFFELF. - 8393 CA; ADEFUNLE V. FOCHVIEW HOTELS

CLTD. (2004) 1 MWLFP (FT.252) 161 at 173-174. &? (')7—:%6"\:1’:‘—67‘%—

Exemplary damages are punitive and may be awarded in any of the following
situations:

a) When the action complained of is appressive, arbitr ary ar unlawful/

Lunconstitutional.
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b) Where the Defendant’s action or conduct has been calculated by him
to malke a profit for himself which may well exceed the
cormpensation payable to the Plaintiff.

) When expressly authorised by statute,

—

(CA); WILLIAMS V. DAILY TIMES OF NIG. LTD. (1990) 1 NWLP. (124) 1;
ONAGOPUWU V. TGP (1991) 2 NWLF (1930) 593 AT 647 -2: IFEREMO V.
CHIEKWE (1991) 2 NWLR (173) 316. %

See UDOFEL LIMITED & ANOP V. kI TE BANET PLC. (2014) LPELF. - """1'1“

I have already held above in this judgement that the Flaintiff's staff had been
injured and bept out of office by the rash and reclless act of the Defendant
on a public way. The Plaintiff is therefore entitled o spedial damages for
expenses incurred in the reatment of itz staff for the injury to the extent
specifically proved by the Plaintiff. The Plaintiff is also entitled to general
damages for the suffering and trauma of the Flaintiff's staff as well as the
vacuum created by the absence of the Plaintiff's staff wha was l'ept out of his
office to go treat the injury he sustained. It is glaring that as a result of that
incident, the Plaintiff's officer waz Fept out of office énfn:l could not perform
his rostered duties, therceby creating a vacuum for almost one month.  See
paragraphs 42 and 43 of the Amended Statement of Claim and paragraphs
19 and 20 of the written statement on oath of the Flaintff. Even though
there is o proof that the Plaintiff's officer was treated by a native doctor in a
village, the two-weel's pass given to the Flaintff's officer indicates that he
was not on duty immediately after the perind of the accident and his
treatrnent at the 1'ogi State Specialisi Hospital. The Flaintiff is therefore

entitled to general damages, and I so hald.
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[ have also held that the Defendant is entitled o special damages, particulars

of which he has stated and supnorted with receipts, E/hibit D2, (30ing by the

definition of exemplary damages, as given above in this judger‘nent, such

evemplary damages may be awarded where the Court finds that the
wrangful act on the part of the Defendant or (in the present case the

Plaintiff/Caunter Defendant), is oppressive or arbitrary.” T have held herein,

that the operatives of the Plaintiff acted arbitrarily when they l'ept the car of

the Defendant still in their cuziady after he had paid the fines shown on the

Notice of Offence Sheet. The Defendant is, therefore, entitled to eremplary

damages. T, however, feel constrained not fo award much money in the area

of evemplary damages bur anly as a olen to show that the Court frowns at
the excesses of the Plaintiff's operatives o the Defendant. 1 say =0 because
taling a halistic view of the scenario of this case, the act which led to the
entire incident which brought the Flaintiff to Court to claim reliefs was bazed
on the wrongdoing of the Defendant who refused or neglected o obey the
signal of appropriate autharity to move over to the parling partion of the

road.  As rightly cbserved by Tsoho, 1. in the case of TOPE ALABL V.

NATIONAL ASSEMELY & 20 OPS (unreparted) (supra), “the Court cannot

inhibit the FRSC from performing its statutory duties, while leaving the

Plaintiff's/motorist and other road users to do as they lile. There raust be

law and Qrder in society”. 1, totally, agree with my Brother.

In the result, T make the following Orders:

1. Adeclaration iz made that the Jangerous driving of the Defendant in a
Toyota Camry (Pencil Light) Car with Pegistration No. EQ 134 AEJ
which led to’the accident involving Oluwaseun S. Adesholz (FPoad
Marshal Aszistant II1) a staff of the Plaintiff, in the course of his official

duties, cauzed the Plaintff to incur financial evpenses for the
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rmedication of the zaid Oluwaseun S. Adeshola, (Poad Marshal Assistant
II).

2. An Order is made compelling the Defendant to pay special damadges in
the sum of Nine Thousand, Faur Hundred and Fifty Naira (NS, <50.00)
only as medical Gill to the Plaintiff incurred for the treatment of her
staff. Oluwaseun S. Adeshala, (Foad Marshal Assistant IID).

3 An Order is made compelling the Defendant t pay the surm of N200.00

(Two Hundred Naira) only for the one day he amitted b pay when he
paid the custody fee on his impounded car with Pegisiration No. EQ
134 ABD on the 04/03/2013.

4. An Order is made directing the Defendant to pay to the Plaintff the
surn of Twa Million (NZ,000,000.00) anly as general damages for the
Defendant's wrongful act af hitting the staff of the: Flainkiif, Oluwaseun
&. Adechola (Poad Marshal Assistant 1I1) with I‘ai‘s car with Fegistration
No. EQ 134 ARJ, on the 24/02/2014, ab Ganaja Junction, near Halims
Hatel, Lol'aja, which caused the said Plaintiff's staff serious body njury,
pain, trauma, financial loss, hardship, and Feeping the staff out of his
office, thereby creating a vacuum.

> An Order is alzo made in respect of the Defendant’s Counter Claim

compelling the Plaintiff to pay to the Defendant Special damages in the
surm of N1,223,000.00 (One MilIic-n,lTwo Hundred and Twenty Three

Thaousand Naira only). :‘X‘E\;

6. An Order iz made directing the Plaintiff to pay the sum of N50O,000.00

(One Hundred Thouzand Maira only) Lo the Defendant as exemplary

darmages for arbitrarily Feeping his Toyoka Camry Car with Pegistration
No. EC 134 ABT beyond 04/02/2012 in its custody after he had paid the
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fines showr on the Notice of Offence Sheet given to him by the Flaintiff
on the 04/03/2013. |

Thic shall be the judgement of this Court in this case. SUDGE

Parties:

Appearances:

FEDERAL HIGH ¢ OURT
LOKOJA

~&¥\ t\%\r A_A- j’ ) ’ .
Hovi. Sustice Plioebe Plsucasn A yua
Judge

10" day of November, 2016

Are all absent from Court.
F. G Yawa, Ezq., for the Plaintiff/Counter Defendant and A.
O. Oncja, Esq., (with David 1. Ali, Esg.), for the

Defendant/Counter Claimant.
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